
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA

COMMISSION CHAMBERS
October 20, 2015

1. 9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: October 6, 2015 Minutes and Summary Minutes
b. RE: KFRA Gambling Premises Permit Request
c. RE: Boondocks of Cleveland Off sale Liquor License
d. RE: Le Sueur Country Club On sale Liquor License
e. RE: CD #48 Repair Request

2. 9:05 a.m. Claims (10 min)

3. 9:15 a.m. Dave Tietz, Sheriff (5 min)
a. RE: Federal Boating Safety Supplemental Grant
b. RE: Purchase Approval

4. 9:20 a.m. Human Services (55 min)

5. 10:15 a.m. Ryan Engelstad, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP (30 min)
a. RE: Review of 2014 Audits

6. 10:45 a.m.  Human Resources (10 min.)

7. 10:55 a.m. Don Hoffman (10 min)
a. RE: Savidge Lake Cemetery

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 1 / 100



8. 11:05 a.m. Todd Hagen, Ehlers (15 min)
a. RE: Pre-Sale Report Presentation

9. 11:20 a.m. Don Reak, Parks (10 min)
a. RE: Solar panel at Nye Park
b. RE: Mountain bike course at Nye Park

10. 11:30 a.m. Jim McMillen, Maintenance (15 min)
a. RE: Human Services Remodel

11. 11:45 a.m. Scott Gerr, MIS (10 min)
a. RE: Optical Fiber Network JPA

12. 11:55 a.m. Darrell Pettis, Administrator/Engineer
a. RE: MCIT
b. RE: Sanborn Lake Workshop, October 28th, 10:00 a.m.
c. RE: CD #38 Public Hearing, December 1st
d. RE: CD #58 Bid opening date and time, October 27th, 2:00 p.m.
e. RE: HSIP Curve Signing Improvements
f. RE: South Central Regional Transportation Meeting
g. RE: Lake Washington Public Hearing Notice
h. RE: Wheelage and Local Option Sales Tax

13. Future Meetings

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 2 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: October 6, 2015 Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: KFRA Gambling Premises Permit Request

RE: Boondocks of Cleveland Off sale Liquor License

RE: Le Sueur Country Club On sale Liquor License

RE: CD #48 Repair Request

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 3 / 100



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
October 6, 2015

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, October 6, 
2015 at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: 
Steve Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, Dave Gliszinski, John King and Joe Connolly. Darrell Pettis and 
Brent Christian were also present. 

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the amended agenda for the business of the day.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
consent agenda:

● Approved the September 22, 2015 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes
● Approved Liquor Licenses for G.E.O. Ok Inc dba Lakeside Supper Club, Whiskey 
River Emporium, Brad Factor dba Little Dandy, Traxler’s Hunting Preserve Inc., Woods 
Grill And Bar,  The Next Chapter Winery LLC,  Hobbers Inc dba Hobber’s Hwy 99 Bar 
& Grill, Caribou Gun Club Inc.
● Approved CD #34 Repair Request

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the following cases and 
claims were approved:                                                                                                 
       Soc Serv:              $ 263,219.48

Financial:             $ 88,335.99

Kelly Robinson appeared before the Board to discuss paving and dust control on CR 143.

Bruce Kimmel, Senior Financial Advisor with Ehlers appeared before the Board to present 
information regarding SULP and refinancing existing bonds.

Joe Stangel and Jim Streifel, DNR came before the Board to discuss the Sanborn Lake project.

Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources came before the Board with several items for approval.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
recommendation to grant regular status to Suzanne Milam, full time Eligibility Worker, in 
Human Services, effective October 6, 2015.  Suzanne has completed the six-month probationary 
period.  

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to advertise for a part time Administrative Assistant II in the Sheriff’s 
Office as a Grade 4, Step 1 at $15.20 per hour.  

The part time jailer/dispatcher position will remain open.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 4 / 100



On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to approve and sign the 2015-2016 Telecommute Agreement between Le 
Sueur County and Kari Peters, effective October 6, 2015.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
recommendation to hire Talia Gilster, full time Community Support Technician, in Human 
Services, as a Grade 5, Step 1, $16.11 per hour, effective October 12, 2015.   

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to advertise for a part time Administrative Assistant II in the Victim 
Witness Department, as a Grade 4, Step 2 at $15.75.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to accept the resignation request from Cortney Haugen, full time 
Jailer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office, effective October 15, 2015. 

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Jailer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office, as 
a Grade 6, Step 1 at $17.07 per hour.

Dave Tietz, Sheriff came before the Board with two items for approval.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Chair to sign the OHV Enforcement Grant Program Agreement.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
purchase of a 2016 Ford Police Interceptor in the amount of $27,677.95 from Nelson Auto 
Center in Fergus Falls, MN and equipment to replace a totaled vehicle.

Jeff Neisen, MIS appeared before the Board with one item for approval.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the Syntax maintenance renewal in the amount of $4,745.

Darrell Pettis, Administrator/Engineer appeared before the Board with several items for approval 
and discussion. 

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Chair and County Administrator to sign the Master Subscriber Agreement 
between Le Sueur County Court Services and the State of Minnesota.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
move forward in scheduling a public hearing for CD #38.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 5 / 100



On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the CD #58 Branch 2 repair project bid opening date for October 23, 2015 at 1:00 p.m. in the Le 
Sueur County Courthouse.

On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved a 
one-time payment of $1,105 to Ready Watt to repair the Lake Emily emergency siren.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Chair to sign the 2016-17 Radiological Emergency Preparedness Grant in the 
amount of $12,000.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following claims:

Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

37749 A’Viands $  15,670.60
37753 Ahlman’s $    4,349.41
37755 Aufderhar Construction Inc. $    3,519.00
37756 B & H Petroleum Equip Inc. $    3,745.11
37760 Bolton & Menk Inc. $    6,710.00
37761 Boyer Truck Parts $    3,277.96
37765 Christian, Keogh, Moran & King $    2,563.22
37767 Code 4 Services LLC $    6,776.75
37769 Cordant Health Solutions $    2,331.75
37775 ESRI $  15,000.00
37776 Exclaimer Ltd. $    4,131.15
37784 Genesis $  19,194.58
37796 I & S Group Inc. $    3,190.00
37797 ITsavvy LLC $    2,597.91
37798 Javens Mechanical Contracting Inc. $  22,212.15
37803 Law Enforcement Technology Group $    4,000.00
37811 MN Counties Computers Coop $    2,275.00
37828 Ramsey County $    2,800.00
37831 Regents of the University of MN $  28,794.24
37838 Schwickert’s Tecta America LLC $    5,323.00
37839 S.E.H. Inc. $  57,702.98
37840 Selly Excavating Inc. $128,076.19
37846 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $    9,155.42
37850 Thomson Reuters $    2,021.45
37852 Tire Associates Inc. $    6,962.94
37854 Traxler Construction Inc. $  30,350.30
37862 Waterford Oil Co. Inc. $  12,819.21
37864 Waterville Lakes Assoc. $    3,805.00

91   Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  32,109.63  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 6 / 100



28   Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $409,355.32  
119 Total all claims paid: $441,464.95  
On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned 
until Tuesday, October 20, 2015 at 9:00 a.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 7 / 100



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, October 6, 2015
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us. 
●The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, October 6, 2015 at 
9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: Steve Rohlfing, 
Lance Wetzel, Dave Gliszinski, John King and Joe Connolly. Darrell Pettis and Brent Christian were also 
present. 
●The Board approved the amended agenda for the business of the day. (Connolly-Rohlfing)
●The Board approved the consent agenda: (Gliszinski-King)

●Approved the September 22, 2015 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes
● Approved Liquor Licenses for G.E.O. Ok Inc dba Lakeside Supper Club, Whiskey River 
Emporium, Brad Factor dba Little Dandy, Traxler’s Hunting Preserve Inc., Woods Grill And Bar,  
The Next Chapter Winery LLC,  Hobbers Inc dba Hobber’s Hwy 99 Bar & Grill, Caribou Gun 
Club Inc.
● Approved CD #34 Repair Request

●The following cases and claims were approved:  Soc Serv: $ 263,219.48 and Financial: $88,335.99 
(King-Gliszinski)                                                                                               
●The Board approved the recommendation to grant regular status to Suzanne Milam, full time Eligibility 
Worker, in Human Services, effective October 6, 2015. (King-Connolly)
●The Board approved the recommendation to advertise for a part time Administrative Assistant II in the 
Sheriff’s Office as a Grade 4, Step 1 at $15.20 per hour. (Rohlfing-Connolly) 
●The Board approved the recommendation to approve and sign the 2015-2016 Telecommute Agreement 
between Le Sueur County and Kari Peters, effective October 6, 2015. (Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●The Board approved the recommendation to hire Talia Gilster, full time Community Support Technician, 
in Human Services, as a Grade 5, Step 1, $16.11 per hour, effective October 12, 2015. (Connolly-King)  
●The Board approved the recommendation to advertise for a part time Administrative Assistant II in the 
Victim Witness Department, as a Grade 4, Step 2 at $15.75. (Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●The Board approved the recommendation to accept the resignation request from Cortney Haugen, full 
time Jailer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office, effective October 15, 2015. (Connolly-Rohlfing)
●The Board approved the recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Jailer/Dispatcher in the 
Sheriff’s Office, as a Grade 6, Step 1 at $17.07 per hour. (King-Gliszinski)
●The Board approved and authorized the Chair to sign the OHV Enforcement Grant Program Agreement. 
(Gliszinski-Connolly)
●The Board approved the purchase of a 2016 Ford Police Interceptor in the amount of $27,677.95 from 
Nelson Auto Center in Fergus Falls, MN and equipment to replace a totaled vehicle. (Rohlfing-King)
●The Board approved the Syntax maintenance renewal in the amount of $4,745. (Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●The Board approved and authorized the Chair and County Administrator to sign the Master Subscriber 
Agreement between Le Sueur County Court Services and the State of Minnesota. (Gliszinski-King)
●The Board approved to move forward in scheduling a public hearing for CD #38. (King-Connolly)
●The Board approved the CD #58 Branch 2 repair project bid opening date for October 23, 2015 at 1:00 
p.m. in the Le Sueur County Courthouse. (Rohlfing-Connolly)
●The Board approved a one-time payment of $1,105 to Ready Watt to repair the Lake Emily emergency 
siren. (King-Rohlfing)
●The Board approved and authorized the Chair to sign the 2016-17 Radiological Emergency Preparedness 
Grant in the amount of $12,000. (Connolly-Gliszinski)
●The Board approved the following claims: (Gliszinski-King)
Warrant # Vendor Name Amount
37749 A’Viands $  15,670.60
37753 Ahlman’s $    4,349.41
37755 Aufderhar Construction Inc. $    3,519.00

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 8 / 100

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


37756 B & H Petroleum Equip Inc. $    3,745.11
37760 Bolton & Menk Inc. $    6,710.00
37761 Boyer Truck Parts $    3,277.96
37765 Christian, Keogh, Moran & King $    2,563.22
37767 Code 4 Services LLC $    6,776.75
37769 Cordant Health Solutions $    2,331.75
37775 ESRI $  15,000.00
37776 Exclaimer Ltd. $    4,131.15
37784 Genesis $  19,194.58
37796 I & S Group Inc. $    3,190.00
37797 ITsavvy LLC $    2,597.91
37798 Javens Mechanical Contracting Inc. $  22,212.15
37803 Law Enforcement Technology Group $    4,000.00
37811 MN Counties Computers Coop $    2,275.00
37828 Ramsey County $    2,800.00
37831 Regents of the University of MN $  28,794.24
37838 Schwickert’s Tecta America LLC $    5,323.00
37839 S.E.H. Inc. $  57,702.98
37840 Selly Excavating Inc. $128,076.19
37846 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $    9,155.42
37850 Thomson Reuters $    2,021.45
37852 Tire Associates Inc. $    6,962.94
37854 Traxler Construction Inc. $  30,350.30
37862 Waterford Oil Co. Inc. $  12,819.21
37864 Waterville Lakes Assoc. $    3,805.00
91   Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  32,109.63  
28   Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $409,355.32  
119 Total all claims paid: $441,464.95  
The Board adjourned until Tuesday, October 20, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. (Connolly-King)
ATTEST:Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 9 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 10 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 11 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 12 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 13 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 a.m. Claims (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 14 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:15 a.m. Dave Tietz, Sheriff (5 min)

RE: Federal Boating Safety Supplemental Grant

RE: Purchase Approval

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 15 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 16 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 17 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 18 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 19 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 20 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 21 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 22 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 23 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 24 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 25 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 26 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 27 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 28 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 4

9:20 a.m. Human Services (55 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 29 / 100



Human Services Board Agenda
October 20, 2015 @ 9:20 a.m.

100- PRESENTATIONS/INFORMATION:
110:  New Staff Introduction:  Talia Gilster (Community Support 
        Technician – Children’s Services)
120:  Electronic Document Management Systems Update
130:  DHS Health Plan Procurement Update

200- PROGRAM GRAPHS & REPORTS:

210- Finance Graphs/Report;
220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                 
230- Family Services Graphs-

                    231- Social Services Team 
       232- Child Services Team
                   242.1- Out Of Home Placement Report
                   242.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report;
        233- Behavioral Health Team

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS:

310 – Brown County Evaluation Center, Inc. (Detox Services)
320 – 2016-17 County MFIP Biennial Service Agreement
330 - Commissioner’s Warrants

               

Department of Human Services
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE          LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646

507-357-2251          FAX 507-357-6122

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 30 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 31 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 5

10:15 a.m. Ryan Engelstad, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP (30 min)

RE: Review of 2014 Audits

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 32 / 100



Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, is an independently  owned and managed 
member of Baker Tilly International. © 2010 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 

Le Sueur County 
 
 
 

Review of 2014 Audits 
 

This report is intended solely for the use of the County Board and Management. 

 
October 20, 2015 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 33 / 100



Agenda 

> Status of Engagements 
> Required Audit Communications 
> Other Management Letter Points 
> Review of Financial Statements Audit 
> Review of Federal Awards Compliance Audit 
> Questions 

 

 

2 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 34 / 100



Status of Engagements 

> Audit of Financial Statements 
– Draft reports finalized – issued 
– Publication of necessary info and submission of electronic report to State Auditor’s office 

completed by the county  

> Audit of Federal Award Programs 
– Draft reports finalized – issued 
– Electronic filing of Data Collection Form and Audit Report to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse 

to be completed 

> Audit of Compliance with State Statutes 
– Included with the compliance report noted above – no findings to report 

 

 

3 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 35 / 100



Required Audit Communications 

> Auditors’ responsibility 
– Findings similar to prior year, which 

are common for local governments 
your size 

> Documents containing audited 
financial statements 

> No changes to planned scope and 
timing 

> Accounting policies 
– No new standards implemented 

> Accounting estimates 
– Not aware of any sensitive accounting 

estimates used by management 
> Financial statement disclosures are 

neutral, consistent and clear 
> No difficulties in performing the audit 
 

 

> Audit adjustments 
– Some were material and a 

complete list is attached 
> No disagreements with 

management 
> No consultations with other 

accountants 
> Management representations 

– Letter is attached 
> Independence 
> Other findings or issues in normal 

course of audit 
> Other matters 
> Restriction on use 

 
 

 

 
4 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 36 / 100



Other Management Letter Points 

> Two-way communication regarding your audit 
> Other recommendations and informational points 

– Decentralized cash collections 
– OMB Uniform Guidance for federal awards now in effect 
– GASB updates 

» GASB Statement No. 68 and 71 related to pensions effective for 2015 
 

 

5 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 37 / 100



Financial Statements 

> Independent Auditors’ Report 
– Unmodified opinion 
– Reference to other auditors’ report with regards to the HRA financial statements 

> Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
> Basic financial statements 

– Full accrual Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities (similar to how a business 
would report) 

– Modified accrual fund statements (similar to budget basis) 
– Footnotes (standard disclosures) 

> Required supplementary information 
– Budget to actual schedules for General Fund and major special revenue funds 

> Supplementary information 
– Combining statements and schedules 
– Budget to actual schedules for remaining governmental funds 
– Schedule of Intergovernmental Revenues 

> See handout for highlights 
 6 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 38 / 100



Federal Grant Awards Compliance Audit 

> Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and Minnesota Legal Compliance 
– Identifies material weakness findings similar to prior years (as mentioned previously) 

> Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control 
Over Compliance: and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Required by OMB Circular A-133 
– No findings identified 

> Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
– Summarizes results 

– Identifies the grant programs tested  

» Social Services Block Grant 

» Child Support Enforcement 

» Medical Assistance Program 

> Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
– Lists federal grants and amounts expended for each in the current year 

– Total expenditures were $2,183,053 (programs tested represented 51% of total) 

 
7 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 39 / 100



Questions? 

8 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 40 / 100



9 

 

Ryan Engelstad, CPA, Partner 
Ryan.Engelstad@bakertilly.com 

612 876 4613 
 

225 South 6th Street, Suite 2300 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

 
 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 41 / 100

mailto:Ryan.Engelstad@bakertilly.com


2014

Details of Fund Balance

Nonspendable 
    includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable
    form or because legal or contractual requirements require them to be maintained intact. 27,286$ 

Restricted
    consists of fund balances with constraints placed on their use either by 1) external groups such
    as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations or other governments or 2) law through
    constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 1,005,232

Assigned
    includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes
    that are not considered restricted or committed.  13,000 

Unassigned

    includes residual positive fund balance within the general fund which has not been classified

    within the other above mentioned categories. 4,736,292

     Total Fund Balance (page 3) 5,781,810$

     General Fund Expenditures (page 5) 11,958,794$

Assigned and Unassigned Fund Balance 4,749,292$

Assigned and Unassigned General Fund - Fund Balance as % of above Expenditures 39.71%
   

2014 2014 2013
Budget Actual Actual

Revenues and other financing sources 11,679,890$          11,811,265$          11,338,212$          
Expenditures and other financing uses (11,691,890)         (11,973,760)          (11,711,650)          

     NET REVENUES (12,000)$               (162,495)$              (373,438)$             

2014 2013 2012

Cash and Investments
     Unrestricted 17,494,605$          19,850,069$          18,303,408$          
     Fiduciary Funds 1,433,822            1,450,154             1,243,588             

         Total Cash and Investments (page 22) 18,928,427$         21,300,223$          19,546,996$         

General Fund Summarized Income Statement (page 36)

2014 FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
LE SUEUR COUNTY

CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

GENERAL FUND 

49.73%

43.30% 39.71%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

2012 2013 2014

Available or Assigned/Unassigned Fund Balance as a Percentage of Expenditures

LE SUEUR
COUNTY

OSA
Recommended
Minimum

GFOA
Recommended
Minimum

1

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 42 / 100



2014 2013 2012

     Total Fund Balances (Deficit) (page 3) (1,957,741)$          1,378,982$            2,333,627$           

2014 2013 2012

     Total Fund Balances (page 3) 6,057,164$           5,431,366$            5,100,565$           

2014 2013 2012

     Total Fund Balances (page 3) 1,917,340$           1,983,895$            2,046,431$           

2014 2013 2012

10,614,012$         12,462,438$          14,463,928$         

107,335,590        100,973,613         98,045,172          

    Percent of Debt Limit 9.89% 12.34% 14.75%

Percentage of Debt Service to Non-Capital
    Expenditures - Governmental Funds 6.89% 7.93% 7.13%

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - HUMAN SERVICES

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

LE SUEUR COUNTY
2014 FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS (cont.)

Outstanding General Obligation (G.O.) Debt,
less amount available in debt service fund

Total G.O. Debt Capacity

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ROAD & BRIDGE

7.13%

7.93%
6.89%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

 2012  2013  2014

Debt Service to Non-Capital Expenditures

LE SUEUR
COUNTY

Bond Rating
Agency
Recommended
Maximum

2

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 43 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 6

10:45 a.m.  Human Resources (10 min.)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 44 / 100



Equal Opportunity Employer

HUMAN RESOURCES
AGENDA ITEMS

October 20, 2015

Retirement plaque presentation to Carla Mador, full time Sheriff’s Administrative Assistant in 
the Sheriff’s Office.  Carla will retire on October 23, 2015 after 28 years of service with Le 
Sueur County.

Recommendation to advertise for a part time Jailer/Dispatcher, in the Sheriff’s Office, Grade 6, 
Step 1 at $17.07 per hour.

Recommendation to accept the retirement request from Harry Baker, Mechanic II – Shop 
Foreman in the Highway Department, effective October 30, 2015.  Harry has been employed 
with Le Sueur County since July 1987.

Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Mechanic II – Shop Foreman in the 
Highway Department, Grade 8, Step 1 at $19.19 per hour.

Recommendation to promote Cari Krenik from a full time Agency Social Worker in Human 
Services, Grade 10, Step 5 at $24.86 per hour to a full time Team Lead Social Worker, in 
Human Services, Grade 12, Step 3 at $26.00 per hour, effective November 2, 2015.

Recommendation to post and request the merit list for a full time Agency Social Worker in 
Human Services, as a Grade 10, Step 1 at $21.55 per hour. 

Recommendation to hire Sara Junker, full time Agency Social Worker in Human Services, as a 
Grade 10, Step 1 at $21.55 per hour, effective November 9, 2015.

Recommendation to implement a Leadership Skills program for all county supervisors and 
department heads. The program’s goal is to enhance and expand the individuals capacity to be 
effective in the leadership roles and processes to aid in setting direction, creating alignment 
and maintaining commitment for leaders of Le Sueur County.  

Human Resources 
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057

 Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607
Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 45 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 7

10:55 a.m. Don Hoffman (10 min)

RE: Savidge Lake Cemetery

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 46 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 8

11:05 a.m. Todd Hagen, Ehlers (15 min)

RE: Pre-Sale Report Presentation

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 47 / 100



 

 
 

 
October 20, 2015 

 
Pre-Sale Report for 
 
Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
 
$2,575,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 
Bruce Kimmel 
Senior Municipal Advisor 
 
And 
 
Todd Hagen 
Senior Municipal Advisor 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 48 / 100



 

 
 

 
Presale Report  
 Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

October 20, 2015
Page 1

 

Executive Summary of Proposed Debt 
 

Proposed Issue: $2,575,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Purposes: The proposed issue includes financing for the following purposes: 

 To fund up to $1.5 million of loans to County property owners 
through the Septic Upgrade Loan Program, and 
 

 To effect a current refunding of the County’s outstanding General 
Obligation Capital Improvement Plan Bonds, Series 2005B.  Interest 
rates on the obligations proposed to be refunded are 3.85% to 4.05% 
and the estimated refunding rates are 0.80% to 1.70%.  The refunding 
is expected to reduce the County’s net interest expense by roughly 
$67,213 over the next 6 years.  The Net Present Value Benefit of the 
refunding is estimated to equal to 5.892% of the refunded principal. 

This refunding is considered to be a Current Refunding as the obligations 
being refunded are either callable (pre-payable) now, or will be within 90 days 
of the date of issue of the new Bonds. 

Debt service for both purposes will be paid from general ad valorem taxes, 
although the County may determine whether to use SULP loan repayments to 
reimburse itself for any portion of its SULP-related debt service. 

Authority: The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475 and 
Section 115.57.  The Bonds count against the County’s General Obligation 
Debt Capacity Limit of 3% of market value. 

The Bonds will be general obligations of the County for which its full faith, 
credit and taxing powers are pledged. 

Term/Call Feature: The Bonds are being issued for just over a 10-year term, with the refunding 
portion extending 6 years of that 10 year total.  Principal on the Bonds will be 
due on February 1 in the years 2017 through 2026. Interest is payable every 
six months beginning August 1, 2016. 

The Bonds maturing on and after February 1, 2025 will be pre-payable at the 
County’s sole discretion on February 1, 2024 or any date thereafter. 

Bank Qualification: Because the County is expecting to issue no more than $10,000,000 in tax 
exempt debt during the 2015 calendar year, the County will be able to 
designate the Bonds as “bank qualified” obligations.  Bank qualified status 
broadens the market for the Bonds, which can result in lower interest rates. 

Rating: The County’s most recent bond issues were rated “AA” by Standard & Poor’s.  
The County will request a new rating for the Bonds. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 49 / 100



 

 
 

 
Presale Report  
 Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

October 20, 2015
Page 2

 

Basis for Recommendation: After considering several options, the County determined that a 10-year 
repayment of the $1.5 million SULP funding purpose best met its objectives. 

Method of Sale/Placement: In order to obtain the lowest interest cost to the County, we will competitively 
bid the purchase of the Bonds from local and national underwriters/banks. 

We have included an allowance for discount bidding equal to 1.20% of the 
principal amount of the issue. The discount provides the underwriter with all 
or a portion of its compensation in the transaction.  If the Bonds are purchased 
at a price greater than the minimum bid amount (maximum discount), the 
unused allowance may be used to lower the County’s borrowing amount. 

Premium Bids:  Under current market conditions, most investors in municipal 
bonds prefer “premium” pricing structures.  A premium is achieved when the 
coupon for any maturity (the interest rate paid by the issuer) exceeds the yield 
to the investor, resulting in a price paid that is greater than the face value of 
the bonds.  The sum of the amounts paid in excess of face value is considered 
“reoffering premium.”  

For this issue of Bonds we have been directed to use any premium to reduce 
the size of the issue.  The adjustments may slightly change the true interest 
cost of the original bid, either up or down. 

Review of Existing Debt: We have reviewed all outstanding indebtedness for the County and find that, 
other than the obligations proposed to be refunded by the Bonds, there are no 
other refunding opportunities at this time.  We will continue to monitor the 
market and the call dates for the County’s outstanding debt and will alert you 
to any future refunding opportunities. 

Continuing Disclosure: Because the County has more than $10,000,000 in outstanding debt (including 
this issue) and this issue is over $1,000,000, the County will be agreeing to 
provide certain updated Annual Financial Information and its Audited 
Financial Statement annually as well as providing notices of the occurrence of 
certain “material events” to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the 
“MSRB”), as required by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC).  The County is already obligated to provide such reports for its existing 
bonds, and has contracted with Ehlers to prepare and file the reports.   

Arbitrage Monitoring: 
 
 

Because the Bonds are tax-exempt securities, the County must ensure 
compliance with certain IRS rules throughout the life of the issue.  These rules 
apply to all gross proceeds of the issue, including initial bond proceeds and 
investment earnings in construction, debt service, and any reserve funds.  How 
issuers spend bond proceeds and how they track interest earnings on funds are 
common subjects of IRS inquiries.  Your specific responsibilities will be 
detailed in the Signature, No-Litigation, Arbitrage Certificate and Purchase 
Price Receipt prepared by your Bond Attorney and provided at closing.  You 
have retained Ehlers to assist you with compliance with these rules. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 50 / 100



 

 
 

 
Presale Report  
 Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

October 20, 2015
Page 3

 

Risk Factors: Current Refunding: The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of current 
refunding prior County debt obligations.  Those prior debt obligations are 
“callable” now and can therefore be paid off within 90 days or less.  The new 
Bonds will not be pre-payable before the refunding portion matures in full.  
This refunding is being undertaken based in part on an assumption that the 
County does not expect to have future revenues to pay off this debt and that 
market conditions warrant the refinancing at this time. 

Other Service Providers: This debt issuance will require the engagement of other public finance service 
providers.  This section identifies those other service providers, so Ehlers can 
coordinate their engagement on your behalf.  Where you have previously used 
a particular firm to provide a service, we have assumed that you will continue 
that relationship.  Fees charged by these service providers will be paid from 
proceeds of the obligation, unless you notify us that you wish to pay them 
from other sources.  Our pre-sale bond sizing includes a good faith estimate of 
these fees, so their final fees may vary.  If you have any questions pertaining 
to the identified service providers or their role, or if you would like to use a 
different service provider for any of the listed services please contact us. 

Bond Attorney: Dorsey & Whitney LLP 

Paying Agent: Bond Trust Services Corporation 

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor’s 

 
This presale report summarizes our understanding of the County’s objectives for the structure and terms of this 
financing as of this date.  As additional facts become known or capital markets conditions change, we may need 
to modify the structure and/or terms of this financing to achieve results consistent with the County’s objectives. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 51 / 100



 

 
 

 
Presale Report  
 Le Sueur County, Minnesota 

October 20, 2015
Page 4

 

Proposed Debt Issuance Schedule 
 

Pre-Sale Review by Board of Commissioners: October 20, 2015 

Distribute Official Statement: Week of November 2, 2015 

Conference with Rating Agency: Week of November 2, 2015 

Board of Commissioners Awards Sale of the Bonds: November 17, 2015 

Estimated Closing Date: December 15, 2015  

Redemption Date for Series 2005B Bonds February 1, 2016  

 

Attachments 
Sources and Uses of Funds 

Proposed Debt Service Schedule 

Refunding Savings Analysis 

Resolution Authorizing Ehlers to Proceed with Bond Sale 
 
 

Ehlers Contacts 
Municipal Advisors: Bruce Kimmel (651) 697-8572 

 Todd Hagen (651) 697-8508 

Disclosure Coordinator: Elizabeth Greiter (651) 697-8550 

Financial Analyst: Alicia Gage (651) 697-8551 
 
 
The Official Statement for this financing will be mailed to the Board of Commissioners at their home addresses or 
e-mailed for review prior to the sale date.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 52 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,575,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Issue Summary 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Total Issue Sources And Uses 

 Dated 12/15/2015 |  Delivered 12/15/2015

Septic Loan 

Program - 

New Money

Current Ref 

05B Bds

Issue 

Summary

 
Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $1,550,000.00 $1,025,000.00 $2,575,000.00

 
Total Sources $1,550,000.00 $1,025,000.00 $2,575,000.00

 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.200%) 18,600.00 12,300.00 30,900.00

Costs of Issuance 26,485.44 17,514.56 44,000.00

Deposit to Project Construction Fund 1,500,000.00 - 1,500,000.00

Deposit to Current Refunding Fund - 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Rounding Amount 4,914.56 (4,814.56) 100.00

 
Total Uses $1,550,000.00 $1,025,000.00 $2,575,000.00

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Issue Summary  |  10/13/2015  |  2:52 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 53 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,575,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Issue Summary 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

12/15/2015 - - - - -

08/01/2016 - - 23,584.04 23,584.04 -

02/01/2017 310,000.00 0.800% 18,783.75 328,783.75 352,367.79

08/01/2017 - - 17,543.75 17,543.75 -

02/01/2018 310,000.00 0.950% 17,543.75 327,543.75 345,087.50

08/01/2018 - - 16,071.25 16,071.25 -

02/01/2019 320,000.00 1.200% 16,071.25 336,071.25 352,142.50

08/01/2019 - - 14,151.25 14,151.25 -

02/01/2020 320,000.00 1.350% 14,151.25 334,151.25 348,302.50

08/01/2020 - - 11,991.25 11,991.25 -

02/01/2021 330,000.00 1.500% 11,991.25 341,991.25 353,982.50

08/01/2021 - - 9,516.25 9,516.25 -

02/01/2022 335,000.00 1.700% 9,516.25 344,516.25 354,032.50

08/01/2022 - - 6,668.75 6,668.75 -

02/01/2023 160,000.00 1.850% 6,668.75 166,668.75 173,337.50

08/01/2023 - - 5,188.75 5,188.75 -

02/01/2024 160,000.00 2.000% 5,188.75 165,188.75 170,377.50

08/01/2024 - - 3,588.75 3,588.75 -

02/01/2025 165,000.00 2.100% 3,588.75 168,588.75 172,177.50

08/01/2025 - - 1,856.25 1,856.25 -

02/01/2026 165,000.00 2.250% 1,856.25 166,856.25 168,712.50

Total $2,575,000.00 - $215,520.29 $2,790,520.29 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $12,694.03

Average Life 4.930 Years

Average Coupon 1.6978086%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9412301%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9479365%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.6892714%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.3240842%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.6978086%

Weighted Average Maturity 4.930 Years

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Issue Summary  |  10/13/2015  |  2:52 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 54 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$2,575,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Issue Summary 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

105% 

Overlevy

02/01/2016 - - - - -

02/01/2017 310,000.00 0.800% 42,367.79 352,367.79 369,986.18

02/01/2018 310,000.00 0.950% 35,087.50 345,087.50 362,341.88

02/01/2019 320,000.00 1.200% 32,142.50 352,142.50 369,749.63

02/01/2020 320,000.00 1.350% 28,302.50 348,302.50 365,717.63

02/01/2021 330,000.00 1.500% 23,982.50 353,982.50 371,681.63

02/01/2022 335,000.00 1.700% 19,032.50 354,032.50 371,734.13

02/01/2023 160,000.00 1.850% 13,337.50 173,337.50 182,004.38

02/01/2024 160,000.00 2.000% 10,377.50 170,377.50 178,896.38

02/01/2025 165,000.00 2.100% 7,177.50 172,177.50 180,786.38

02/01/2026 165,000.00 2.250% 3,712.50 168,712.50 177,148.13

Total $2,575,000.00 - $215,520.29 $2,790,520.29 $2,930,046.30

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 12/15/2015

First Coupon Date 8/01/2016

 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $12,694.03

Average Life 4.930 Years

Average Coupon 1.6978086%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.9412301%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.9479365%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.6892714%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.3240842%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.6978086%

Weighted Average Maturity 4.930 Years

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Issue Summary  |  10/13/2015  |  2:52 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 55 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,550,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Septic Loan Program - New Money 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

12/15/2015 - - - - -

08/01/2016 - - 15,481.00 15,481.00 -

02/01/2017 145,000.00 0.800% 12,330.00 157,330.00 172,811.00

08/01/2017 - - 11,750.00 11,750.00 -

02/01/2018 145,000.00 0.950% 11,750.00 156,750.00 168,500.00

08/01/2018 - - 11,061.25 11,061.25 -

02/01/2019 150,000.00 1.200% 11,061.25 161,061.25 172,122.50

08/01/2019 - - 10,161.25 10,161.25 -

02/01/2020 150,000.00 1.350% 10,161.25 160,161.25 170,322.50

08/01/2020 - - 9,148.75 9,148.75 -

02/01/2021 155,000.00 1.500% 9,148.75 164,148.75 173,297.50

08/01/2021 - - 7,986.25 7,986.25 -

02/01/2022 155,000.00 1.700% 7,986.25 162,986.25 170,972.50

08/01/2022 - - 6,668.75 6,668.75 -

02/01/2023 160,000.00 1.850% 6,668.75 166,668.75 173,337.50

08/01/2023 - - 5,188.75 5,188.75 -

02/01/2024 160,000.00 2.000% 5,188.75 165,188.75 170,377.50

08/01/2024 - - 3,588.75 3,588.75 -

02/01/2025 165,000.00 2.100% 3,588.75 168,588.75 172,177.50

08/01/2025 - - 1,856.25 1,856.25 -

02/01/2026 165,000.00 2.250% 1,856.25 166,856.25 168,712.50

Total $1,550,000.00 - $162,631.00 $1,712,631.00 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $8,923.06

Average Life 5.757 Years

Average Coupon 1.8225932%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.0310419%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.0381782%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.6892714%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.3637183%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.8225932%

Weighted Average Maturity 5.757 Years

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Septic Loan Program - New  |  10/13/2015  |  2:52 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 56 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,550,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Septic Loan Program - New Money 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

105% 

Overlevy

02/01/2016 - - - - -

02/01/2017 145,000.00 0.800% 27,811.00 172,811.00 181,451.55

02/01/2018 145,000.00 0.950% 23,500.00 168,500.00 176,925.00

02/01/2019 150,000.00 1.200% 22,122.50 172,122.50 180,728.63

02/01/2020 150,000.00 1.350% 20,322.50 170,322.50 178,838.63

02/01/2021 155,000.00 1.500% 18,297.50 173,297.50 181,962.38

02/01/2022 155,000.00 1.700% 15,972.50 170,972.50 179,521.13

02/01/2023 160,000.00 1.850% 13,337.50 173,337.50 182,004.38

02/01/2024 160,000.00 2.000% 10,377.50 170,377.50 178,896.38

02/01/2025 165,000.00 2.100% 7,177.50 172,177.50 180,786.38

02/01/2026 165,000.00 2.250% 3,712.50 168,712.50 177,148.13

Total $1,550,000.00 - $162,631.00 $1,712,631.00 $1,798,262.55

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 12/15/2015

First Coupon Date 8/01/2016

 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $8,923.06

Average Life 5.757 Years

Average Coupon 1.8225932%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.0310419%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.0381782%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.6892714%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.3637183%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.8225932%

Weighted Average Maturity 5.757 Years

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Septic Loan Program - New  |  10/13/2015  |  2:52 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 57 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,025,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Current Ref 05B Bds 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

12/15/2015 - - - - -

08/01/2016 - - 8,103.04 8,103.04 -

02/01/2017 165,000.00 0.800% 6,453.75 171,453.75 179,556.79

08/01/2017 - - 5,793.75 5,793.75 -

02/01/2018 165,000.00 0.950% 5,793.75 170,793.75 176,587.50

08/01/2018 - - 5,010.00 5,010.00 -

02/01/2019 170,000.00 1.200% 5,010.00 175,010.00 180,020.00

08/01/2019 - - 3,990.00 3,990.00 -

02/01/2020 170,000.00 1.350% 3,990.00 173,990.00 177,980.00

08/01/2020 - - 2,842.50 2,842.50 -

02/01/2021 175,000.00 1.500% 2,842.50 177,842.50 180,685.00

08/01/2021 - - 1,530.00 1,530.00 -

02/01/2022 180,000.00 1.700% 1,530.00 181,530.00 183,060.00

Total $1,025,000.00 - $52,889.29 $1,077,889.29 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $3,770.97

Average Life 3.679 Years

Average Coupon 1.4025372%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.7287131%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.7392742%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.6892714%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.2328766%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.4025372%

Weighted Average Maturity 3.679 Years

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Current Ref 05B Bds  |  10/13/2015  |  2:53 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 58 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,025,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Current Ref 05B Bds 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings

02/01/2016 - - - -

02/01/2017 179,556.79 179,556.79 189,722.50 10,165.71

02/01/2018 176,587.50 176,587.50 188,947.50 12,360.00

02/01/2019 180,020.00 180,020.00 192,980.00 12,960.00

02/01/2020 177,980.00 177,980.00 191,380.00 13,400.00

02/01/2021 180,685.00 180,685.00 189,580.00 8,895.00

02/01/2022 183,060.00 183,060.00 192,492.50 9,432.50

Total $1,077,889.29 $1,077,889.29 $1,145,102.50 $67,213.21

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 
 
Gross PV Debt Service Savings..................... 63,730.14

 
Net PV Cashflow Savings @  1.689%(Bond Yield)..... 63,730.14

 
Contingency or Rounding Amount.................... (4,814.56)

Net Present Value Benefit $58,915.58

 
Net PV Benefit / $1,078,227.92 PV Refunded Debt Service 5.464%

Net PV Benefit /  $1,000,000 Refunded Principal... 5.892%

Net PV Benefit /  $1,025,000 Refunding Principal.. 5.748%

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 12/15/2015

Refunding Delivery Date 12/15/2015

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Current Ref 05B Bds  |  10/13/2015  |  2:53 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 59 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,025,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Current Ref 05B Bds 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Current Refunding Escrow 

Date Principal Rate Receipts Disbursements Cash Balance

12/15/2015 - - - - -

02/01/2016 1,000,000.00 - 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 -

Total $1,000,000.00 - $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 -

Investment Parameters 
 
Investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securities] Securities

Default investment yield target Unrestricted

 
 
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 1,000,000.00

Total Cost of Investments $1,000,000.00

 
Target Cost of Investments at bond yield $997,852.86

Actual positive or (negative) arbitrage (2,147.14)

 
Yield to Receipt -6.12E-12

Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.6892714%

 
State and Local Government Series (SLGS) rates for 9/10/2015

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Current Ref 05B Bds  |  10/13/2015  |  2:53 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 60 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, MN 
$2,145,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Plan Bonds, Series 2005B 

Total Refunded Debt Service 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total

08/01/2016 - - 19,861.25 19,861.25 -

02/01/2017 150,000.00 3.850% 19,861.25 169,861.25 189,722.50

08/01/2017 - - 16,973.75 16,973.75 -

02/01/2018 155,000.00 3.850% 16,973.75 171,973.75 188,947.50

08/01/2018 - - 13,990.00 13,990.00 -

02/01/2019 165,000.00 4.000% 13,990.00 178,990.00 192,980.00

08/01/2019 - - 10,690.00 10,690.00 -

02/01/2020 170,000.00 4.000% 10,690.00 180,690.00 191,380.00

08/01/2020 - - 7,290.00 7,290.00 -

02/01/2021 175,000.00 4.050% 7,290.00 182,290.00 189,580.00

08/01/2021 - - 3,746.25 3,746.25 -

02/01/2022 185,000.00 4.050% 3,746.25 188,746.25 192,492.50

Total $1,000,000.00 - $145,102.50 $1,145,102.50 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 12/15/2015

Average Life 3.748 Years

Average Coupon 4.0071253%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 3.748 Years

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 12/15/2015

Refunding Delivery Date 12/15/2015

2005B GO CIP Bonds CR fil  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  10/13/2015  |  2:53 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 61 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, MN 
$2,145,000 G.O. Capital Improvement Plan Bonds, Series 2005B 

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date

Refunded 

Bonds D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest

Refunded 

D/S

12/15/2015 - - - - - -

02/01/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 - - - -

08/01/2016 - - - - 19,861.25 19,861.25

02/01/2017 - - 150,000.00 3.850% 19,861.25 169,861.25

08/01/2017 - - - - 16,973.75 16,973.75

02/01/2018 - - 155,000.00 3.850% 16,973.75 171,973.75

08/01/2018 - - - - 13,990.00 13,990.00

02/01/2019 - - 165,000.00 4.000% 13,990.00 178,990.00

08/01/2019 - - - - 10,690.00 10,690.00

02/01/2020 - - 170,000.00 4.000% 10,690.00 180,690.00

08/01/2020 - - - - 7,290.00 7,290.00

02/01/2021 - - 175,000.00 4.050% 7,290.00 182,290.00

08/01/2021 - - - - 3,746.25 3,746.25

02/01/2022 - - 185,000.00 4.050% 3,746.25 188,746.25

Total $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 - $145,102.50 $1,145,102.50

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 12/15/2015

Average Life 3.748 Years

Average Coupon 4.0071253%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 3.748 Years

 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date 12/15/2015

Refunding Delivery Date 12/15/2015

2005B GO CIP Bonds CR fil  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  10/13/2015  |  2:53 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 62 / 100



 

 

Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
$1,025,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

Current Ref 05B Bds 

Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 25bp 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

105% 

Overlevy

02/01/2016 - - - - -

02/01/2017 165,000.00 0.800% 14,556.79 179,556.79 188,534.63

02/01/2018 165,000.00 0.950% 11,587.50 176,587.50 185,416.88

02/01/2019 170,000.00 1.200% 10,020.00 180,020.00 189,021.00

02/01/2020 170,000.00 1.350% 7,980.00 177,980.00 186,879.00

02/01/2021 175,000.00 1.500% 5,685.00 180,685.00 189,719.25

02/01/2022 180,000.00 1.700% 3,060.00 183,060.00 192,213.00

Total $1,025,000.00 - $52,889.29 $1,077,889.29 $1,131,783.75

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 12/15/2015

First Coupon Date 8/01/2016

 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $3,770.97

Average Life 3.679 Years

Average Coupon 1.4025372%

 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.7287131%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.7392742%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.6892714%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.2328766%

 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.4025372%

Weighted Average Maturity 3.679 Years

Series 2015B GO Bonds - P  |  Current Ref 05B Bds  |  10/13/2015  |  2:53 PM

  
  
   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 63 / 100



30
 Y

E
A

R
 T

R
E

N
D

 IN
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

 B
O

N
D

 IN
D

IC
E

S

S
o

u
rc

e:
 T

h
e 

B
o

n
d

 B
u

ye
r

T
he

 B
on

d 
B

uy
er

 “
20

 B
on

d 
In

de
x”

 (
B

B
I)

 s
ho

w
s 

av
er

ag
e 

yi
el

ds
 o

n 
a 

gr
ou

p 
of

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 b

on
ds

 th
at

 
m

at
ur

e 
in

 2
0 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
ra

tin
g 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 to

 M
oo

dy
’s

 A
a2

 a
nd

 S
&

P
’s

 A
A

. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 64 / 100



 

 
   

Resolution No.  _______________ 
 

Council Member _________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption: 
 

Resolution Providing for the Sale of 
$2,575,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B 

 
 

A. WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Le Sueur County, Minnesota has heretofore 
determined that it is necessary and expedient to issue the County's $2,575,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2015B (the "Bonds"), to fund up to $1.5 million of loans to County property owners 
through the Septic Upgrade Loan Program and to refund the County’s outstanding G.O. Capital 
Improvement Plan Bonds, Series 2005B, for interest cost savings; and  

 
B. WHEREAS, the County has retained Ehlers & Associates, Inc., in Roseville, Minnesota ("Ehlers"), as 

its independent financial advisor for the Bonds in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 
475.60, Subdivision 2(9); 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Le Sueur County, 
Minnesota, as follows: 
 
1. Authorization; Findings.  The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes Ehlers to assist the County 

for the sale of the Bonds. 
 
2. Meeting; Proposal Opening.  The Board of Commissioners shall meet at 11:00 a.m. on November 17, 

2015, for the purpose of considering proposals for and awarding the sale of the Bonds. 
 
3. Official Statement.  In connection with said sale, the officers or employees of the County are hereby 

authorized to cooperate with Ehlers and participate in the preparation of an official statement for the 
Bonds and to execute and deliver it on behalf of the County upon its completion. 

 
 
The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by Board of Commissioners 
Member _______________________ and, after full discussion thereof and upon a vote being taken 
thereon, the following Board of Commissioners Members voted in favor thereof: 
 
 
and the following voted against the same: 

Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 

Dated this 20th day of October, 2015. 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 65 / 100



Resolution No.  _______________

Council Member _________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption:

Resolution Providing for the Sale of
$2,575,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015B

A. WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Le Sueur County, Minnesota has heretofore 
determined that it is necessary and expedient to issue the County's $2,575,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2015B (the "Bonds"), to fund up to $1.5 million of loans to County property owners 
through the Septic Upgrade Loan Program and to refund the County’s outstanding G.O. Capital 
Improvement Plan Bonds, Series 2005B, for interest cost savings; and 

B. WHEREAS, the County has retained Ehlers & Associates, Inc., in Roseville, Minnesota ("Ehlers"), as 
its independent financial advisor for the Bonds in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 
475.60, Subdivision 2(9);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Le Sueur County, 
Minnesota, as follows:

1. Authorization; Findings.  The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes Ehlers to assist the County 
for the sale of the Bonds.

2. Meeting; Proposal Opening.  The Board of Commissioners shall meet at 11:00 a.m. on November 17, 
2015, for the purpose of considering proposals for and awarding the sale of the Bonds.

3. Official Statement.  In connection with said sale, the officers or employees of the County are hereby 
authorized to cooperate with Ehlers and participate in the preparation of an official statement for the 
Bonds and to execute and deliver it on behalf of the County upon its completion.

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by Board of Commissioners 
Member _______________________ and, after full discussion thereof and upon a vote being taken 
thereon, the following Board of Commissioners Members voted in favor thereof:

and the following voted against the same:

Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted.

Dated this 20th day of October, 2015.

_____________________________________________

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 66 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 9

11:20 a.m. Don Reak, Parks (10 min)

RE: Solar panel at Nye Park

RE: Mountain bike course at Nye Park

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 67 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 68 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 69 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 70 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 10

11:30 a.m. Jim McMillen, Maintenance (15 min)

RE: Human Services Remodel

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 71 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 11

11:45 a.m. Scott Gerr, MIS (10 min)

RE: Optical Fiber Network JPA

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 72 / 100



 JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

 FOR DEVELOPMENT OF OPTICAL FIBER NETWORK 
 
This agreement is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Commissioner of the Office of MN.IT 
Services (“MN.IT” and/or “State”), and the County of Le Sueur (“County”).   The County is a Governmental 
Unit of the State of Minnesota.  
 
1. General Purpose 

This Agreement is made and entered into pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59, subdivision 10, 
the State and the County have an interest in continuing the development of an optical fiber based network. 
The fiber based network will provide a resilient connection from Le Center to the State networks called 
MNET. MNET provides interconnectivity between public sector entities and connectivity to the internet. 
The network equipment provided by the State enables the County to jointly and cooperatively develop and 
implement communications among other institutional sites. The network will be managed by the State 
through the State Agency MN.IT. 

 
2. Effective Date and Term 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective date of October 15, 2015, or the date the 
State obtains all required signatures under Minnesota Statutes Section 16C.05, subdivision 2, whichever 
is later.  
 
This agreement will expire 30 (thirty) years from date of execution of the agreement.   

 
3. Agreement for each entity 

The intended use for new network fiber segment is to construct and manage a fiber optic network path 
providing resiliency for the purpose of delivering IP communications services among institutional sites and 
the State network as more fully described below. 
 
3.1 Le Sueur County will: 

 

• Pay a one-time fee in the amount $100,000.00 (One Hundred Thousand Dollar) to the State of 
Minnesota, upon execution of this agreement, for the construction of dark fiber from Le Center 
intercepting an existing dark fiber path that runs from Shakopee to Mankato. Refer to Exhibit A, 
which is attached and incorporated into this contract. 
 

• Provide or arrange for space and emergency access for State network equipment at Le Sueur 
County facilities as necessary for operating a public Institutional Network.   

 
3.2 State will: 

 

• Engineer, furnish, install, and maintain network equipment necessary to operate an Institutional 
Network on the new fiber path providing the resilient network IP path to Le Center. 
 

• Reserve four (4) strands on the fiber provided under this agreement for the future use by Le Sueur 
County. 

 

• Provide for all maintenance including locates and repairs on the new fiber path for the duration of 
the agreement. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 73 / 100



4. Payment 
The County will make one payment in the amount of $100,000.00 (One Hundred Thousand Dollars), 
upon execution of this agreement.  For future expenses, unless expressly provided in an amendment to 
this Agreement, each entity will bear its own to perform these duties.  
 

5. Network Development, Design, Operation and Management 
The State will design the Network and install and manage the electronic devices needed to make the 
network operational.  The parties shall use all reasonable efforts to maintain their respective associated 
fiber facilities to enable the Network to remain fully functional. 

 
6. Liaisons 

To assist the Parties in the day-to-day performance of this Agreement and to ensure compliance with the 
specifications and provide ongoing consultation, liaisons shall be designated by the Parties.  The Parties 
shall inform the others, in writing, of any change in the designated liaison.  At the time of execution of 
this Agreement the following persons are the designated liaisons: 
 
The State's Liaison is: 
Jim E. Johnson, Director of Network and Telecommunications Services 
Minnesota Information Technology 
658 Cedar St 
St Paul, MN 55155 
651.201.1016 

 Jim.e.Johnson@state.mn.us 
 

Le Sueur’s Liaison is: 
Scott Gerr, MIS Director 
Le Sueur  County  
88 park Avenue South 
Le Center, MN 56067 
507.357.8100 
sgerr@co.le-sueur.mn.us 
 

7. Assignment, Amendments, Waiver, and Contract Complete 

7.1 Assignment.  The County and/or State may not assign or transfer any rights or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior consent of the other parties and a fully executed Assignment Agreement, 
executed and approved by the same parties who executed and approved this Agreement, or their 
successors in office. 
 
7.2 Amendments.  Any amendment to this Agreement must be in writing and will not be effective until it 
has been executed and approved by the same parties who executed and approved the original Agreement, 
or their successors in office. 
 
7.3 Waiver.  If any Party fails to enforce any provision of this Agreement, that failure does not waive the 
provision or its right to enforce it. 
 
7.4 Contract Complete.  This Agreement contains all negotiations and agreements between the Parties.  
No other understanding regarding this Agreement, whether written or oral, may be used to bind any party. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 74 / 100



8. Liability and Insurance 
Each party to this Agreement shall be liable for the acts of its own agents, volunteers or employees and 
the results thereof to the extent authorized by law and shall not be responsible for the acts of any other 
party, its agents, volunteers or employees. 

 
It is understood and agreed that liability and damages arising from the parties’ acts and omissions are 
governed by the provisions of the municipal Tort Claims Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 466, the Minnesota Tort 
Claims Act, Minn. Stat. §3.736, as applicable, and other applicable laws.   Each Party warrants that it is 
able to comply with the aforementioned liability and insurance requirements through an insurance or self-
insurance program and that each has minimum coverage consistent with the liability limits contained in 
Minn. Stat. Ch. 466 or Minn. Stat. §3.736, as applicable. 

 
This agreement shall not be construed as and does not constitute a waiver by any Party of any conditions, 
exclusions or limitations on the Party’s liability provided by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 466, Minnesota 

Statutes § 3.736 or other applicable law.  This clause will not be construed to bar any legal remedies that 

each party may have for another's failure to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement. 
 

9. State Audits 
Under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5, the County’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures 
and practices relevant to this Agreement are subject to examination by the State and/or the State Auditor 
or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this Agreement. 

 
10. Government Data Practices  

The Governmental Unit and State must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all data provided by each Party under this Agreement, and as it applies 
to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by any Party under this 
Agreement. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08 apply to the release of the data referred to in this 
clause by any Party. 

 
If the Governmental Unit receives a request to release data referred to in this Clause, the Governmental 
Unit must immediately notify the State from whom the data originated.  The originating State will give 
the Governmental Unit instructions concerning the release of the data to the requesting party before the 
data is released. 

 
11. Venue 

Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate state or  
Federal court with competent jurisdiction in Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

 

12. Termination 

12.1 Unless terminated sooner as provided by subparagraphs 12.2 & 12.3 herein, this Agreement shall 
terminate thirty (30) years after the effective date established in paragraph 2 of this Agreement.  
 
12.2 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause, at any time 
after the initial ten (10) year period, from the date of execution, and after receipt of notice at least 180 
days prior to termination.   
 
12.3 Termination for Insufficient Funding.  The State may immediately terminate this Agreement if it 
does not obtain funding from the Minnesota Legislature, or other funding source; or if funding cannot be 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 75 / 100



continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the services covered here.  Termination must be 
by written or fax notice to the other Parties.  The State is not obligated to pay for any services that are 
provided after notice and effective date of termination. The State will not be assessed any penalty if the 
Agreement is terminated because of the decision of the Minnesota Legislature, or other funding source, 
not to appropriate funds. The State must provide the other Parties notice of the lack of funding within a 
reasonable time of the State’s receiving that notice. 

 

12.4 Ownership.  At the end of the term of this Agreement or upon its termination the parties will each 
own four (4) strands each on the fiber from Le Sueur intercepting the Mankato to Shakopee fiber and the 
State will own the electronic devices it installed pursuant to this Agreement.   
 

13. Miscellaneous Provisions 
Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement may be amended by written consent of both parties.  
The addition of a new Party to this Agreement shall require a written amendment approved by all Parties. 

 
Should any provision of this Agreement be found unlawful, the other provisions of this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect if by doing so the purposes of this Agreement, taken as a whole, can be 
made operative.  Should any such provision or article be found unlawful, representatives of the Parties 
shall meet for the purpose of arriving at an agreement on a lawful provision to replace the unlawful 
provision or article.  The newly agreed upon provision or amendment must be approved by the governing 
body of each Party. 

 
The State of Minnesota, acting through its Office of MN.IT Services and LeSueur County hereby grant 
each other mutual continuing Licenses for access to their respective property as reasonably needed from 
time to time, for the installation, maintenance and repair of the Network, which Licenses shall remain in 
effect for the duration of this Agreement and for such limited time thereafter as is reasonably required for 
the Parties’ access to and removal of their respective property.  To the extent practicable, advance notice 
will be given and mutually convenient arrangements for such access shall be made, and all relevant safety 
and security policies and procedures of the party to whose property access is being granted shall be 
followed by the Party, or the Party’s employees or agents, being granted access. 
 
The Parties shall abide by all Federal, State and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations 
now in effect or hereinafter adopted pertaining to this Agreement and to the facilities, programs and staff 
for which each Party is responsible. 
 

14.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by 
the parties hereto on separate counterparts, each of which counterparts when so executed and delivered 
shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which counterparts when taken together shall constitute but 
one and the same Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 
[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 76 / 100



 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned governmental units have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
its duly authorized officers. 
 
 
LE SUEUR COUNTY Approved by Le Sueur County Board 

  
By:_______________________________________ 
   
  
Date of signature:____________________________ ______________________________ 
 Brent Christian 
 LeSueur County Attorney 
 
By:_______________________________________ 
  
 
 
Date of signature:____________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Office of MN.IT Services 

 

 
By: _______________________________________ 
 
 
 _______________________________________ 
 Print Name and Title 
 
 
Date of signature: ___________________________  
 
Commissioner of Administration 
As delegated to Materials Management Division 
 
 
By: _______________________________________ 
 
 
 _______________________________________ 
 Print Name and Title 
 
 
Date of signature: ___________________________ 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 77 / 100



Exhibit A 
 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 78 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 12

11:55 a.m. Darrell Pettis, Administrator/Engineer

RE: MCIT

RE: Sanborn Lake Workshop, October 28th, 10:00 a.m.

RE: CD #38 Public Hearing, December 1st

RE: CD #58 Bid opening date and time, October 27th, 2:00 p.m.

RE: HSIP Curve Signing Improvements

RE: South Central Regional Transportation Meeting

RE: Lake Washington Public Hearing Notice

RE: Wheelage and Local Option Sales Tax

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 79 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 80 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 81 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 82 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 83 / 100



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 84 / 100



Progress In Motion
South Central Regional Transportation Meeting

Monday, November 2, 2015
2:00 pm to 4:00 pm

Greater Mankato Growth
1961 Premier Drive, Mankato, Minnesota

Welcome  - Margaret Donahoe, Transportation Alliance
Tim Worke, Associated General Contractors of MN

Presentation of Local Needs
MnDOT District Engineer
County Commissioners
City Officials
Businesses
Transit System Managers

Discussion with Legislators

Invited:   Senator Vicki Jensen
                                                Senator Kathy Sheran
                                                Senator Julie Rosen
                                                Senator Gary Dahms
                                                Rep. Clark Johnson
                                                Rep. Jack Considine
                                                Rep. Bob Gunther
                                                Rep. Tony Cornish
                                                Rep. John Petersburg
                                                Rep. Brian Daniels
                                                Rep. Paul Torkelson

   

Progress In Motion
Transportation for a strong Minnesota

Progress In Motion
525 Park St Ste 240
Saint Paul MN 55103-2186

   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 85 / 100



Minnesota Transportation Alliance

New Funding for 
Local Transportation

-2013-
Wheelage and 

Sales Tax Changes 
For Counties 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 86 / 100



The wheelage tax was authorized by the legislature in 1972 for counties in the Twin 
Cities metropolitan area at a rate of  $5 per vehicle. The authority to use this tax was 
not widely embraced because the law at that time required a reduction in the general 
levy equivalent to the revenue generated by the wheelage tax. The tax revenue must 
be deposited in the county road and bridge fund and must be used for highway pur-
poses within the meaning of  Article 14 of  the Minnesota Constitution.

Transportation advocates including the Minnesota Transportation Alliance have been 
advocating for a number of  years for changes to this law including the expansion of  
the authority and the repeal of  the requirement for a corresponding reduction in the 
general levy. The first change to the law did repeal that requirement. Subsequent to 
that change in law, additional counties passed resolutions to impose the tax so that 
by 2013, five of  the seven counties in the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area imposed the 
wheelage tax at $5 per vehicle.

Advocates continued to push for expansion of  the authority to all 87 counties and a 
change in the rate to allow the tax to be imposed by counties at a rate up to $20 per 
vehicle.

During the 2013 Legislative Session, the Transportation Alliance worked to have a bill 
(SF891/HF931) introduced that would provide additional revenue for highways and 
transit and the language included the expansion of  the wheelage tax to all 87 counties 
and the authority to charge up to $20 per vehicle.

The Transportation Appropriations bill that was passed into law in 2013 – Chapter 
117 (Article 3, section 4) - did include the expansion of  the wheelage tax authority 
to all 87 counties.  The rate was restricted to $10 per vehicle from January 1, 2014 
through December 31, 2017 due to computer programming issues at the Department 
of  Public Safety. After January 1, 2018, all counties will be able to charge an amount 
up to $20 per vehicle annually in any increment of  a whole dollar. The new tax au-
thority applies to a registration period starting on or after January 1, 2014.
 

-The Wheelage Tax-

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 87 / 100



The tax applies to most vehicles, but there exemptions from the tax. The following 
vehicles are exempt from the wheelage tax: motorcycles, vertical motorcycles, rec-
reational vehicles, prorate (MN trailer), moped, contract trailer, semi trailer, trailer 
(farm), state owned tax exempt and tax exempt vehicles, utility trailer, street rod, 
pioneer, classic, collector and classic motorcycle.

The wheelage tax does apply to: passenger vehicles, pick up trucks, one ton trucks, 
buses, class 2 city buses, school buses, farm trucks, concrete pump/sweepers, prorate 
trucks, commercial zone trucks, van pools, commercial trucks and prorate foreign 
trucks. 

A county board may provide for the collection of  the wheelage tax by resolution by 
county officials or it may request that the tax be collected by the state registrar of  
motor vehicles. If  the tax is made collectible by the state registrar, it needs to be cer-
tified by the county auditor to the registrar no later than August 1 in the year before 
the calendar year or years for which the tax is levied.
 
The costs for each county are determined by the total costs of  the program and the 
number of  vehicles domiciled in each of  the counties. Counties that pass a resolution 
imposing the wheelage tax should contact: 

Patricia McCormack, Director
Driver and Vehicle Services Division
Minnesota Department of  Public Safety
(651) 201-7580
patricia.mccormack@state.mn.us

Ms. McCormack will set up a meeting to discuss the costs involved and the set up 
process.

If  all 87 counties were to impose the wheelage tax at the $10 per vehicle rate, we 
estimate that the tax would generate approximately $46.8 million in the coming year. 
A five-cent increase in the state motor fuel tax would generate approximately $41 
million for the County State Aid Fund. Money generated through the wheelage tax 
does not have to be spent exclusively on the State Aid system.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 88 / 100



Aitkin
Anoka
Becker
Beltrami
Benton
Big Stone
Blue Earth
Brown
Carlton
Carver
Cass
Chippewa
Chisago
Clay
Clearwater
Cook
Cottonwood
Crow Wing
Dakota
Dodge
Douglas
Faribault
Fillmore
Freeborn
Goodhue
Grant

$164,700 
$2,719,990 

$313,980 
$342,960 
$316,240 

$59,830 
$501,850 
$284,280 
$318,880 
$734,360 
$257,940 
$126,450 
$538,090 
$464,070 

$95,220 
$52,780 

$122,670 
$602,430 

$3,347,760 
$193,600 
$360,420 
$163,840 
$234,500 
$288,100 
$462,830 

$73,430 

Estimated Revenue of  Wheelage Fee by County-2014
*Estimate based on a $10 charge per vehicle

DISCLAIMER: These numbers are estimates by Alliance staff  for planning 
purposes only.  These estimates were derived from information from the 
Department of  Revenue, state budget forecast and Department of  Public Safety.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 89 / 100



Hennepin
Houston
Hubbard
Isanti
Itasca
Jackson
Kanabec
Kandiyohi
Kittson
Koochiching
Lac Qui Parle
Lake
Lake of  the Woods
Le Sueur
Lincoln
Lyon
Mahnomen
Marshall
Martin
McLeod
Meeker
Mille Lacs
Morrison
Mower
Murray
Nicollet
Nobles
Norman
Olmsted
Otter Tail

$8,923,970 
$196,110 
$190,350 
$334,640 
$422,630 
$108,470 
$147,070 
$398,240 

$54,560 
$130,110 

$80,960 
$108,410 

$44,510 
$309,940 

$67,610 
$244,960 

$40,540 
$114,420 
$191,820 
$356,820 
$222,820 
$280,420 
$344,080 
$353,010 
$101,770 
$259,500 
$204,820 

$75,420 
$1,200,540 

$568,650 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 90 / 100



Pennington
Pine
Pipestone
Polk
Pope
Ramsey
Red Lake
Redwood
Renville
Rice
Rock
Roseau
Scott
Sherburne
Sibley
St. Louis
Stearns
Steele
Stevens
Swift
Todd
Traverse
Wabasha
Wadena
Waseca
Washington
Watonwan
Wilkin
Winona
Wright
Yellow Medicine

$136,350 
$272,900 
$106,680 
$300,800 
$114,910 

$3,801,960 
$47,440 

$172,220 
$173,530 
$530,690 

$93,880 
$170,200 

$1,048,040 
$778,690 
$147,080 

$1,687,700 
$1,336,410 

$336,200 
$93,660 

$112,970 
$230,360 

$41,160 
$236,900 
$150,790 
$181,440 

$2,027,890 
$113,440 

$75,960 
$390,190 

$1,119,590 
$114,420 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 91 / 100



-The Local Option Sales Tax- 
The authority for a Local Option Sales tax for Transportation was enacted as part of  the compre-
hensive transportation funding bill passed in 2008 – Chapter 152.

Local sales tax authority included in Chapter 152 allowed the seven counties in the Twin Cities 
Metropolitan Area to impose a ¼ cent local sales tax for transit purposes.  Five of  the seven coun-
ties in the Metropolitan Area have formed a joint powers board – the Counties Transit Improve-
ment Board (CTIB) and have ben levying this tax to fund transit projects.

For counties outside of  the metropolitan transportation area, a single county or group of  counties 
acting under a joint powers agreement, may impose a local sales tax of  up to ½ of  one percent and 
an excise tax of  $20 per motor vehicle.  Motor vehicles are not included in the taxable sales that 
the increased sales tax would apply to so the $20 per vehicle fee is imposed instead of  increasing the 
sales tax rate on those vehicles.

The Minnesota Transportation Alliance supported removing the referendum requirement 
for imposition of  the local option sales tax outside of  the metropolitan transportation 
area and included this language in SF891/HF931 that was introduced during the 2013 
Session.

Under the law passed in 2008, the local sales tax and excise tax authorized outside of  the 
metropolitan transportation area were subject to approval of  the voters in each county at 
a general election. The Transportation Appropriations bill passed in 2013 – Chapter 117 – 
removed the requirement for holding a referendum in order to impose the tax. Now the tax 
may be imposed by resolution of  the county board or boards following a public hearing.  

According to the new language passed in 2013, the proceeds of  the tax must be dedicated 
exclusively to:
1)	 Payment	of 	the	capital	cost	of 	a	specific	transportation	project	or	improvement;
2) Payment of  the costs, which may include both capital and operating costs, of  a   
	 specific	transit	project	or	improvement;
3) Payment of  the capital costs of  a safe routes to school program under section   
	 174.40;	or
4) Payment of  transit operating costs.
The transportation or transit project or improvement must be designated by the board of  
the county or more than one county acting under a joint powers board. Except for taxes 
for operating costs of  a transit project or improvement, or for transit operations, the taxes 
must terminate when revenues raised are sufficient to finance the project.

The new language was made effective the day following final enactment of  the law.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 92 / 100



Aitkin
Becker
Beltrami
Benton
Big Stone
Blue Earth
Brown
Carlton
Cass

2014 Projection          2015 Forecast         2016 Forecast       2017 ForecastCounty 

$710,657
$1,965,684
$2,958,212
$2,270,491

$155,042
$7,431,952
$1,595,238
$1,492,892
$1,335,145

$732,862
$2,027,104
$3,050,643
$2,341,434

$159,886
$7,664,169
$1,645,083
$1,539,538
$1,376,863

$755,550
$2,089,860
$3,145,087
$2,413,921

$164,836
$7,901,441
$1,696,012
$1,587,200
$1,419,489

$775,928
$2,146,225
$3,229,912
$2,479,026

$169,281
$8,114,547
$1,741,755
$1,630,008
$1,457,773

Estimated New Revenue of  1/2 Cent Local Option Sales Tax by County
DISCLAIMER: These numbers are estimates by Alliance staff  for planning purposes only.  
These estimates were derived from information from the Department of  Revenue, state 
budget forecast and Department of  Public Safety.

The	administration,	collection,	and	enforcement	provisions	in	Minnesota	Statutes	section	297A.99,	
subdivisions	4	and	6	to	12,	apply	to	all	taxes	imposed	under	this	section.	

MS 291A.99, Subdivision 12 states that a political subdivision may impose a tax under this section 
starting only on the first day of  a calendar quarter. A political subdivision may repeal a tax under this 
section stopping only on the last day of  a calendar quarter.
(b) The political subdivision shall notify the commissioner of  revenue at least 90 days before imposing, 
changing the rate of, or repealing a tax under this section.
(c) The political subdivision shall change the rate of  tax imposed under this section starting only on 
the first day of  a calendar quarter, and only after the commissioner has notified sellers at least 60 days 
prior to the change.
(d) The political subdivision shall apply the rate change for sales tax imposed under this section to 
purchases from printed catalogs, wherein the purchaser computed the tax based upon local tax rates 
published in the catalog, starting only on the first day of  a calendar quarter, and only after the com-
missioner has notified sellers at least 120 days prior to the change.
(e) The political subdivision shall apply local jurisdiction boundary changes to taxes imposed under this 
section starting only on the first day of  a calendar quarter, and only after the commissioner has notified 
sellers at least 60 days prior to the change.

The project must serve a transportation purpose but the language does not specifically require the 
funding to be used for roadways or bridges. A building that served a transportation purpose would 
qualify.  Bus purchases would not qualify but bus facilities would fall into the category of  transit capi-
tal.

The 80 counties outside of  the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area could generate over $145 million in new 
revenue for transportation with the imposition of  a ½ cent local sales tax in each county.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 93 / 100



Chippewa
Chisago
Clay
Clearwater
Cook
Cottonwood
Crow Wing
Dodge
Douglas
Faribault
Fillmore
Freeborn
Goodhue
Grant
Houston
Hubbard
Isanti
Itasca
Jackson
Kanabec
Kandiyohi
Kittson
Koochiching
Lac Qui Parle

Lake
Lake of  the Woods

Le Sueur
Lincoln
Lyon
Mahnomen
Marshall
Martin
McLeod
Meeker
Mille Lacs
Morrison

 2014 Projection          2015 Forecast          2016 Forecast      2017 ForecastCounty 
$847,913

$1,501,782
$2,697,808

$238,281
$640,149
$447,554

$5,565,039
$528,401

$3,350,872
$676,335
$855,791

$1,852,329
$2,169,556

$199,030
$476,945
$971,549

$2,185,815
$2,621,603

$421,983
$403,520

$3,707,096
$153,307
$843,868
$228,715

$1,034,945
$367,650
$686,151
$217,901

$3,012,592
$333,651
$272,753
$999,047

$2,189,550
$960,449
$956,073

$1,278,816

$874,406
$1,548,706
$2,782,103

$245,726
$660,151
$461,538

$5,738,923
$544,912

$3,455,572
$697,468
$882,531

$1,910,206
$2,237,345

$205,248
$491,848

$1,001,906
$2,254,112
$2,703,517

$435,168
$416,128

$3,822,927
$158,097
$870,235
$235,862

$1,067,282
$379,137
$707,590
$224,709

$3,106,723
$344,077
$281,276

$1,030,263
$2,257,964

$990,459
$985,946

$1,318,773

$901,477
$1,596,652
$2,868,233

$253,334
$680,589
$475,827

$5,916,592
$561,781

$3,562,552
$719,061
$909,853

$1,969,343
$2,306,610

$211,603
$507,075

$1,032,924
$2,323,896
$2,787,214

$448,641
$429,011

$3,941,280
$162,991
$897,177
$243,163

$1,100,324
$390,875
$729,496
$231,666

$3,202,903
$354,729
$289,983

$1,062,158
$2,327,867
$1,021,122
$1,016,469
$1,359,600

$925,790
$1,639,715
$2,945,591

$260,166
$698,945
$488,660

$6,076,166
$576,933

$3,658,636
$738,454
$934,392

$2,022,458
$2,368,821

$217,310
$520,751

$1,060,782
$2,386,573
$2,862,387

$460,741
$440,582

$4,047,578
$167,387
$921,374
$249,722

$1,130,000
$401,417
$749,171
$237,914

$3,289,287
$364,296
$297,804

$1,090,805
$2,390,651
$1,048,663
$1,043,884
$1,396,270

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 94 / 100



Mower
Murray
Nicollet
Nobles
Norman
Olmsted
Otter Tail
Pennington
Pine
Pipestone
Polk
Pope
Red Lake
Redwood
Renville
Rice
Rock
Roseau
Sherburne
Sibley
St. Louis
Stearns
Steele
Stevens
Swift
Todd
Traverse
Wabasha
Wadena
Waseca
Watonwan
Wilkin
Winona
Wright
Yellow Medicine

2014 Projection         2015 Forecast      2016 Forecast      2017 ForecastCounty 

$1,645,381
$297,729

$1,210,139
$1,243,448

$231,206
$12,370,865

$4,250,850
$1,013,325

$987,294
$419,038

$1,417,451
$381,071
$147,392
$944,642
$539,592

$2,710,126
$319,699
$725,808

$3,830,620
$301,989

$16,190,061
$11,560,101

$2,869,528
$616,754
$457,405
$505,402
$119,427
$644,005
$796,674
$698,379
$410,464
$139,622

$2,738,739
$6,548,722

$355,330

$1,696,792
$307,031

$1,247,950
$1,282,300

$238,430
$12,757,402

$4,383,671
$1,044,987
$1,018,142

$432,131
$1,461,740

$392,978
$151,998
$974,159
$556,452

$2,794,806
$329,688
$748,486

$3,950,311
$311,425

$16,695,932
$11,921,305

$2,959,188
$636,025
$471,697
$521,194
$123,159
$664,128
$821,566
$720,201
$423,290
$143,984

$2,824,313
$6,753,342

$366,432

$1,749,322
$316,537

$1,286,585
$1,321,999

$245,812
$13,152,353

$4,519,383
$1,077,339
$1,049,663

$445,509
$1,506,994

$405,144
$156,703

$1,004,317
$573,679

$2,881,329
$339,895
$771,658

$4,072,607
$321,066

$17,212,814
$12,290,372

$3,050,801
$655,715
$486,300
$537,329
$126,972
$684,688
$847,001
$742,497
$436,394
$148,442

$2,911,749
$6,962,416

$377,776

$1,796,502
$325,074

$1,321,285
$1,357,654

$252,441
$13,507,079

$4,641,274
$1,106,395
$1,077,973

$457,525
$1,547,638

$416,071
$160,930

$1,031,404
$589,152

$2,959,040
$349,062
$792,470

$4,182,447
$329,725

$17,677,054
$12,621,850

$3,133,082
$673,400
$499,416
$551,821
$130,396
$703,154
$869,845
$762,523
$448,164
$152,446

$2,990,281
$7,150,196

$387,965

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 95 / 100



Transportation Alliance Silver Level Sponsors 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 96 / 100



Transportation Alliance Gold Level Sponsors 

www.transportationalliance.com
(651)659-0804
525 Park St. Ste. 240
St. Paul, MN 55103-2186
facebook.com/transportationalliance   twitter: @TransAlliance

  Contact Us: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 97 / 100



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 13

Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 98 / 100



Future Meetings 2015

October 20, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

October 27, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*CD #16 Redetermination of Benefits Public Hearing, 
9:30 a.m.
**Nicollet/Le Sueur Joint Meeting, 12:00 in the 
President's Dining Room at the Student Center at 
Gustavus College in St. Peter

October 28, 2015 *Sanborn Lake Workshop, 10:00 a.m. in Courtroom A
**Scott-Le Sueur General Information Ditch Workshop, 
1:00 – 4:00 p.m. at the Nye Center

November 3, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*JD #1 Lat 2 Public Hearing, 1:30 p.m. at the Scott 
County Government Center in Shakopee

November 4, 2015 District 7 Meeting, 9:00 a.m. at Riverside Town & 
Country Club in Blue Earth

November 10, 2015 No Board Meeting

November 11, 2015 Offices closed for Veteran’s Day

November 12, 2015 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Environmental Services Building

November 17, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

November 17, 2015 Le Sueur – Waseca Community Health Board (CHB)
1:30pm in the Waterville City Council Chambers

November 19, 2015 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 99 / 100



November 24, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

November 26-27, 2015 Offices Closed for Thanksgiving

December 1, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. and CD #38 Public Hearing, 
10:00 a.m. held at the Le Center American Legion

December 8, 2015 No Board Meeting

December 10, 2015 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Environmental Services Building

December 15, 2015 Board Meeting, 4:30 p.m.
*Final Levy and Budget Public Hearing, 6:00 p.m. at the 
LSC Courthouse in the Commission Chambers

December 17, 2015 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

December 22, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

December 24, 2015 Offices Close at Noon for Christmas

December 25, 2015 Offices Closed for Christmas

December 29, 2015 No Board Meeting

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/20/2015 Page 100 / 100


